
CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT 
SANITARY BOARD MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023 
 

 1

AGENDA 
 
The meeting will be held at 7:00 p.m. via teleconference [call 1 (866) 899 - 4679 
Conference Access Code: 251566821] and anyone interested may also call in. The 
District Office at 20863 Stevens Creek Blvd, Suite 100, Cupertino is closed. 

1.  ROLL CALL 

2.  AB 361 

The Board of Directors makes the following findings required by AB 361 in order to 
continue holding meetings by teleconferencing electronically: (1) the March 4, 2020 
Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency is still in effect, (2) the California 
Department of Public Health and the County Health Officer continue to encourage social 
distancing and strongly recommend that all people wear masks in all indoor public spaces, 
and (3) due to room capacity limitations, meeting in person would present imminent risks 
to the health or safety of attendees. 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the board on any 
matter not on the agenda. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. 

All statements requiring a response will be referred to staff for further action.  In most 
cases, state law will prohibit the board from making any decisions with respect to a matter 
not listed on the agenda. 

4.  CLOSED SESSION 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  
in accordance with government code section Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9, existing litigation. Name of Case:  County Sanitation District 2-3, 
West Valley Sanitation District, Cupertino Sanitary District, Burbank Sanitary 
District and the City of Milpitas v. The City of San Jose, The City of Santa Clara 
and Does 1 through 50 inclusive. 

B. DISTRICT MANAGER PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

5.  MINUTES 

A. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF JANUARY 18, 2023 

B. APPROVED MINUTES OF JANUARY 4, 2023 



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT 
SANITARY BOARD MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023 
 

 2

6.  CORRESPONDENCE 

NONE 

7.  MEETINGS 

A. TELECONFERENCE MEETING OF THE SAN JOSE/SANTA CLARA 
TREATMENT PLANT TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) TO BE HELD 
ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

B. CASSE TELECONFERENCE MEETING TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY, 
FEBRUARY 8, 2023 

C. TELECONFERENCE MEETING OF THE SAN JOSE/SANTA CLARA 
TREATMENT PLANT ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TPAC) TO BE HELD ON 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2023  

8.  REPORTS 

A. CASSE TELECONFERENCE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, JANUARY 19, 
2023 

B. CASA ANNUAL WINTER CONFERENCE HELD JANUARY 25-27, 2023, IN PALM 
SPRINGS, CA 

9.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. COVID-19 UPDATES 

10.  NEW BUSINESS 

A. WOLFE ROAD SEWER RELOCATION BIDS  

B. I-280/WOLFE ROAD SEWER RELOCATION - IMPERIUM FIRST CONSULTING 
AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR PREVAILING WAGE COMPLIANCE 
SERVICES 

C. I-280/WOLFE ROAD SEWER RELOCATION - SEQUOIA ECOLOGICAL 
CONSULTING AGREEMENT FOR BIOLOGICAL SERVICES 
 

D. BOARD DIRECTOR SALARY SURVEY 



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT 
SANITARY BOARD MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023 
 

 3

11.  STAFF REPORT  

A. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

12.  CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. NEXT REGULAR DISTRICT BOARD MEETING IS TO BE HELD ON 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023 

13.  ADJOURNMENT 



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023 

Board Meeting Minutes of 
Page 1 of 3 January 18, 2023 

The Sanitary Board of the Cupertino Sanitary District convened this date at 7:00 p.m. This meeting was 
conducted via teleconferencing in accordance with AB 361. The District office at 20863 Stevens Creek 
Blvd, Suite 100, Cupertino was closed. 

1. ROLL CALL:

President Kwok called the meeting to order, and the following proceedings were had to wit: Roll call 
was taken, with the following members in attendance: 

Directors present: William A. Bosworth, Angela S. Chen, Taghi S. Saadati, David A. Doyle, and Patrick 
S. Kwok.

Staff present: District Manager Benjamin Porter, Deputy District Manager Robert Woodhouse, and 
Counsel Marc Hynes. 

District Consultant: Richard K. Tanaka  

Public: Richard Lowenthal, Arvind Agarwal, and Yoriko Kishimoto 

2. AB 361:

The Board of Directors makes the following findings required by AB 361 in order to continue holding 
meetings by teleconferencing electronically: (1) the March 4, 2020 Governor’s Proclamation of a State 
of Emergency is still in effect, (2) the County of Santa Clara Health Officer announced on May 10, 2022 
that COVID-19 cases are rising again to higher levels than last summer's surge and there is a rise in 
hospitalizations; she continues to encourage social distancing and advises people wear masks indoors, 
and (3) due to room capacity limitations, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health 
or safety of attendees. 

On a motion by Director Saadati, seconded by Director Bosworth, by a vote of 5-0-0, the Board approved. 

By consensus, the Board moved agenda Item 10.A - “Proposed Cupertino Water Treatment Plant” up in 
the agenda to follow Agenda Item 2.  

10. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Richard Lowenthal presented a proposal to develop a water treatment facility adjacent to Blackberry
Farms Golf Course.  The treatment facility could treat all or a portion of the wastewater from two
sewer mains that serve approximately 530 Cupertino residential connections to produce recycled
water to irrigate the Blackberry Farm Golf Course, Deep Cliff Golf Course, and McClellan Ranch.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

Yoriko Kishimoto, the President of Mid-Pen Open Space, who also serves on the Local Area Formation 
Commission (LAFCO), introduced herself to the Board. 

4. CLOSED SESSION:

President Kwok adjourned the regular meeting session and opened the closed session at 7:35 p.m. 

Item 5.A.



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023 

Board Meeting Minutes of 
Page 2 of 3 January 18, 2023 

Manager Porter, Deputy Manager Woodhouse, and guests were excused from the closed session. 

A. Conference with legal counsel – Existing Litigation in accordance with government code section
Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9, existing litigation. Name of Case: County
Sanitation District 2-3, West Valley Sanitation District, Cupertino Sanitary District, Burbank
Sanitary District, and the City of Milpitas v. The City of San Jose, The City of Santa Clara, and
Does 1 through 50 inclusive.

Board action: There was no reportable action.

President Kwok adjourned the closed session at 8:01 p.m. and the regular meeting was called to order. 
District Manager Porter, and Deputy Manager Woodhouse rejoined the regular meeting. 

5. MINUTES & BILLS:

A. On a motion by Director Chen, seconded by Director Bosworth, by a vote of 5-0-0, the minutes of
the regular meeting held on Wednesday, January 4, 2023, were approved.

B. By consensus, the Minutes of Wednesday, December 21, 2022, are to be Noted & Filed.

C. The Board reviewed December payable warrants and financial statements. On a motion by Director
Saadati, seconded by Director Doyle, by a vote of 5-0-0, the financial statements and payment of
bills for December were approved as written.

D. The Board members will submit their January timesheets to Manager Porter.

6. CORRESPONDENCE:

A. The Board reviewed correspondence from the County of Santa Clara Supervisor, Otto Lee –
Congratulations Letters to District Board Members Taghi Saadati, Patrick Kwok, and David Doyle.
They are to be Noted & Filed.

7. MEETINGS:

A. Deputy Manager Woodhouse plans to attend the CASSE teleconference meeting to be held
Thursday, January 19, 2023.

B. Board Members and Staff plan to attend the CASA Annual Winter Conference to be held January
25-27, 2023, in Palm Springs, CA.

C. Manager Porter plans to attend the teleconference meeting of the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment
Plant Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to be held on Monday, February 6, 2023.

D. President Kwok plans to attend the teleconference meeting of the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment
Plant Advisory Committee (TPAC) to be held on Thursday, February 9, 2023.



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023 

 

  Board Meeting Minutes of 
 Page 3 of 3 January 18, 2023 
 

 

8. REPORTS: 

A. Manager Porter reported on the teleconference meeting of the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) held on Monday, January 9, 2023. 

B. Deputy Manager Woodhouse reported on the CASA Collection System Work Group held on 
January 11, 2023. 

C. President Kwok reported on the teleconference meeting of the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC) held on Thursday, January 12, 2023. 

 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. District Manager Porter reported on the Covid-19 updates. 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Item 10.A moved up on the agenda before public comments.  
  

B. The Board reviewed Installer’s Agreement Closeout for The Forum Development. On a motion by 
Director Chen, seconded by Director Doyle, by a vote of 5-0-0, the Board approved Resolution No. 
1338, Accepting The Sanitary Sewer Improvements Installed In Conjunction With Parcel Map 342 
Page 54, Parcel 052, “23500 Cristo Rey Drive”, Cupertino Ca 95014 More Specifically Known As 
The Forum At Rancho San Antonio. 

11. STAFF REPORTS: 

A. Manager Porter reported on Future Development Projects. 
 

B. Manager Porter reported on the maintenance summary report. 

12. CALENDAR ITEMS: 

A. The next regular District Board meeting is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, February 1, 2023.  
 

13. ADJOURNMENT: 

On a motion properly made and seconded, at 8: 48 p.m. the meeting was adjourned. 

 

_________________________________    _______________________________ 
Secretary of the Sanitary Board    President of the Sanitary Board 



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2023 

Board Meeting Minutes of 
Page 1 of 3 January 4, 2023 

The Sanitary Board of the Cupertino Sanitary District convened this date at 7:00 p.m. This meeting was 
conducted via teleconferencing in accordance with AB 361. The District office at 20863 Stevens Creek 
Blvd, Suite 100, Cupertino was closed. 

1. ROLL CALL:

President Kwok called the meeting to order, and the following proceedings were had to wit: Roll call 
was taken, with the following members in attendance: 

Directors present: William A. Bosworth, Angela S. Chen, Taghi S. Saadati, David A. Doyle, and Patrick 
S. Kwok.

Staff present: District Manager Benjamin Porter, Deputy District Manager Robert Woodhouse, and 
Counsel Marc Hynes. 

District Consultant: Richard K. Tanaka  

Public: None 

2. AB 361:

The Board of Directors makes the following findings required by AB 361 in order to continue holding 
meetings by teleconferencing electronically: (1) the March 4, 2020 Governor’s Proclamation of a State 
of Emergency is still in effect, (2) the County of Santa Clara Health Officer announced on May 10, 2022 
that COVID-19 cases are rising again to higher levels than last summer's surge and there is a rise in 
hospitalizations; she continues to encourage social distancing and advises people wear masks indoors, 
and (3) due to room capacity limitations, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health 
or safety of attendees. 

On a motion by Director Saadati, seconded by Director Doyle, by a vote of 5-0-0, the Board approved.  

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

There were none. 

4. CLOSED SESSION:

President Kwok adjourned the regular meeting session and opened the closed session at 7:02 p.m. 
Manager Porter, and Deputy Manager Woodhouse were excused from the closed session. 

A. Conference with legal counsel – Existing Litigation in accordance with government code section
Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9, existing litigation. Name of Case: County
Sanitation District 2-3, West Valley Sanitation District, Cupertino Sanitary District, Burbank
Sanitary District, and the City of Milpitas v. The City of San Jose, The City of Santa Clara, and
Does 1 through 50 inclusive.

Board action: There was no reportable action.

Item 5.B.



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2023 

 

  Board Meeting Minutes of 
 Page 2 of 3 January 4, 2023 
 

President Kwok adjourned the closed session at 7:31 p.m. and the regular meeting was called to order. 
District Manager Porter, and Deputy Manager Woodhouse rejoined the regular meeting. 

5. MINUTES & BILLS: 

A. On a motion by Director Saadati, seconded by Director Chen, by a vote of 3-0-1, the minutes of the 
regular meeting held on Wednesday, December 21, 2022, were approved. President Kwok 
abstained because he was not in the entire meeting due to technical issues. Due to power outages 
and loss of internet, Director Bosworth was not present to vote.  

B. By consensus, the Minutes of Wednesday, December 7, 2022, are to be Noted & Filed. 

6. CORRESPONDENCE: 

A. The Board reviewed correspondence from the City of San Jose, titled: Third Quarter Adjustments 
for FY21-22 O&M and CIP Billing. It is to be Noted & Filed. 

7. MEETINGS: 

A. Manager Porter plans to attend the teleconference meeting of the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment 
Plant Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to be held on Monday, January 9, 2023. 

B. Deputy Manager Woodhouse plans to attend the CASA Collection System Work Group to be held 
January 11, 2023. 

C. President Kwok plans to attend the teleconference meeting of the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment 
Plant Advisory Committee (TPAC) to be held on Thursday, January 12, 2023.  

D. Deputy Manager Woodhouse plans to attend the CASSE teleconference meeting to be held 
Thursday, January 19, 2023. 

8. REPORTS: 

A. President Kwok reported on the teleconference meeting of the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant 
Advisory Committee (TPAC) held on Thursday, December 8, 2022. 

 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. District Manager Porter reported on the Covid-19 updates. 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. The Board discussed the California Water Environment Association AC23 Annual Conference to be 
held April 18-21, 2023, in San Diego, CA. President Kwok introduced the agenda item indicating 
that he has attended the conference in previous years. Board members inquired about the costs and 
the benefit to the District. The conference will have a technical program and an exhibitor hall.  The 
cost was estimated to be $2,000 - $3,000. 



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2023 

 

  Board Meeting Minutes of 
 Page 3 of 3 January 4, 2023 
 

11. STAFF REPORTS: 

A. Manager Porter reported on Future Development Projects. 
 

B. Manager Porter reported on CASA Winter Conference updates. 

12. CALENDAR ITEMS: 

A. The next regular District Board meeting is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, January 18, 2023.  
 

13. ADJOURNMENT: 

On a motion properly made and seconded, at 7: 59 p.m. the meeting was adjourned. 

 

_________________________________    _______________________________ 
Secretary of the Sanitary Board    President of the Sanitary Board 



 

 
 
  

Cupertino Sanitary District 

Memo        Item 10A 
 To: Board of Directors  

From: Benjamin Porter, District Manager-Engineer 

Date: February 1, 2023 

Re: Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation Bids 

Background: 

Bids for the Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation project were opened on Thursday January 26, 
2023. Two bis were received with the lowest apparent bidder being Cratus Inc. A Summary 
of the two bids and the Engineer’s estimate are provided below. The two bids were within 
2% of each other, and the lowest bid was 4% lower than the Engineer’s estimate.  

Contractor Bid/Estimate 

Cratus, Inc.  $6,635,182 

JMB Construction $6,749,987 

Engineer’s Estimate $6,926,262 

 

We will review Cratus Inc’s bid package and confirm with their project references that they 
are a reliable contractor prior to the February 1, 2023 Board Meeting.  

Recommendation: 

To Award the contract to the lowest qualified bidder.   

Attachment: 

1) Bid Comparison 
2) Cratus Inc.’s Bid Documents 

  



Page 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 – Bid Comparison 

  



Agency Cupertino Sanitary District Date: 1/26/2023

Project 

Description
Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation Prepared by ED

Project 

Location 
Cupertino, CA

Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1 Water Pollution Control LS 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 20,000.00$      $20,000 120,000.00$    $120,000

2 Mobilization LS 1 $68,576.85 $68,576.85 200,000.00$    $200,000 300,000.00$    $300,000

3 Tree Removal LS 1 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 50,000.00$      $50,000 110,000.00$    $110,000

4 Temporary Barrier (Type K) LF 2475 $20.00 $49,500.00 20.00$             $49,500 60.00$             $148,500

5 Temporary Crash Cushion Module EA 6 $300.00 $1,800.00 1,000.00$        $6,000 2,300.00$        $13,800

6 Construction Area Signs LS 1 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 5,000.00$        $5,000 40,000.00$      $40,000

7 Portable Arrow Board EA 8 $7,500.00 $60,000.00 1,000.00$        $8,000 3,000.00$        $24,000

8 Channelizer (Surface Mounted) EA 214 $50.00 $10,700.00 40.00$             $8,560 100.00$           $21,400

9 Traffic Cones EA 562 $25.00 $14,050.00 2.00$               $1,124 15.00$             $8,430

10 Site Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 50,000.00$      $50,000 180,000.00$    $180,000

11 Salvage CCTV Tower Camera and remove cctv utility boxes LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 50,000.00$      $50,000 50,000.00$      $50,000

12

Ramp Metering Light Relocation

Salvage Exist Ramp metering light. INSTALL temporary ramp 

metering light 20' Northwest of original location along travel 

way. 

EA 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 100,000.00$    $100,000 50,000.00$      $50,000

13 Temporary Bypass Pumping Systems LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 25,000.00$      $25,000 25,000.00$      $25,000

14

Rehabilitate Manhole L3-86 (Hyatt House)

 -Core Drill & watertight mortar seal

 -Tie in New 8" sewer

 -Plug 15" Invert (out)

EA 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 12,000.00$      $12,000 4,500.00$        $4,500

15

Manhole C-1

 -Construct New  4' Manhole C-1 (~ 12.4' Deep)

 -Reconnect existing 15" VCP  

 -Tie in new 15" PVC encased in a 36" carrier pipe 

EA 1 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 25,000.00$      $25,000 55,000.00$      $55,000

16

Manhole C-2

 -Construct New 6' Manhole C-2 (~ 16.0' Deep)

 -Tie in new 15" PVC encased in a 36" carrier pipe

-ArmorLok Liner 

EA 1 $23,744.00 $23,744.00 65,000.00$      $65,000 65,000.00$      $65,000

17

Manhole C-3

 -Construct New 6' Manhole C-3 (~ 16.3' Deep)

 -Tie in new 15" PVC encased in a 36" carrier pipe

-ArmorLok Liner

EA 1 $23,914.00 $23,914.00 65,000.00$      $65,000 65,000.00$      $65,000

Bid Summary

Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation

Cratus Inc JMB Construction IncEngineer's Estimate
Quantity UnitsItem No. Item Description



Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

Cratus Inc JMB Construction IncEngineer's Estimate
Quantity UnitsItem No. Item Description

18

Manhole C-4

-Construct New 6' Drop Manhole C-4 (~ 20.0' Deep)

-Tie in new 15" PVC encased in a 36" carrier pipe

-Tie in new 8" PVC sewer with inside pipe drop

-ArmorLok Liner

EA 1 $25,837.00 $25,837.00 65,000.00$      $65,000 68,000.00$      $68,000

19

Manhole C-5

-Construct New 6' Drop Manhole C-5 (~ 20.0' Deep)

- Core Drill & watertight mortar seal 

-Tie in existing 8" Sanitary Sewer Lateral with inside drop

-Tie in new 15" PVC sewer

EA 1 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 65,000.00$      $65,000 100,000.00$    $100,000

20

Manhole WOF-1

 -Core Drill & watertight mortar seal 

 -Tie in new 15" PVC sewer main

 -Re-channel

EA 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 10,000.00$      $10,000 4,500.00$        $4,500

21
New 8" PVC segment by open cut method (Hyatt House 

Reconnection Segment )
LF 106 $250.00 $26,500.00 600.00$           $63,600 650.00$           $68,900

22

Install 15” of PVC sewer pipe and 36” Steel Pipe by 

Microtunneling between SSMH C-1 to SSMH C-2, Includes 

grouting of annular space
LS 1 $1,294,800.00 $1,294,800.00 1,300,000.00$ $1,300,000 1,200,000.00$ $1,200,000

23

Install 15” of PVC sewer pipe and 36” Steel Pipe by 

Microtunneling between SSMH C-2 to SSMH C-3, Includes 

grouting of annular space
LS 1 $988,450.00 $988,450.00 1,150,000.00$ $1,150,000 960,000.00$    $960,000

24

Install 15” of PVC sewer pipe and 36” Steel Pipe by 

Microtunneling between SSMH C-3 to SSMH C-4, Includes 

grouting of annular space
LS 1 $1,311,000.00 $1,311,000.00 1,550,000.00$ $1,550,000 1,335,000.00$ $1,335,000

25 Install 15" PVC sewer pipe by open cut method LF 191 $600.00 $114,600.00 1,200.00$        $229,200 1,200.00$        $229,200

26
Shoring - Interlocking Sheet Piles and/or Trench Boxes for 191' 

of Pipe
SF 7640 $40.00 $305,600.00 2.00$               $15,280 3.00$               $22,920

27 Install 15" PVC sewer pipe by open cut method LF 336 $600.00 $201,600.00 1,200.00$        $403,200 1,100.00$        $369,600

28
Shoring - Interlocking Sheet Piles and/or Trench Boxes for 336' 

of Pipe
SF 13600 $40.00 $544,000.00 2.00$               $27,200 3.00$               $40,800

29 Install 8" PVC sewer pipe by open cut method LF 242 $540.00 $130,680.00 600.00$           $145,200 650.00$           $157,300

30
Shoring - Interlocking Sheet Piles and/or Trench Boxes for 242' 

of Pipe
SF 7744 $40.00 $309,760.00 2.00$               $15,488 3.00$               $23,232

31 Trenchless Shaft at “C” Line STA 1+60 (~20' Deep) LS 1 $180,000.00 $180,000.00 200,000.00$    $200,000 40,000.00$      $40,000

32 Trenchless Shaft at “C” Line STA 6+50 (~20' Deep) LS 1 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 200,000.00$    $200,000 350,000.00$    $350,000

33 Trenchless Shaft at “C” Line STA 10+20 (~20' Deep) LS 1 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 200,000.00$    $200,000 340,000.00$    $340,000

34 Trenchless Shaft at “C” Line STA 15+90 (~20' Deep ) LS 1 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 200,000.00$    $200,000 55,000.00$      $55,000

35
Abandon Existing 15" VCP in place 

 -Cap 15" invert at Manhole L3-86
LF 496 $40.00 $19,840.00 10.00$             $4,960 35.00$             $17,360

36
Abandon Existing 15" VCP in place

 -Cap 15" invert at Manhole L3-86
LF 403 $40.00 $16,120.00 10.00$             $4,030 35.00$             $14,105



Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

Cratus Inc JMB Construction IncEngineer's Estimate
Quantity UnitsItem No. Item Description

37
Abandon Existing 15" VCP in place 

 -Cap 15" invert at Manhole L3-84A
LF 324 $40.00 $12,960.00 10.00$             $3,240 35.00$             $11,340

38
Abandon Existing 15" VCP in place 

 -Cap 15" invert at Manhole L3-83
LF 412 $40.00 $16,480.00 10.00$             $4,120 35.00$             $14,420

39
Abandon Existing 15" VCP in place 

 -Cap 15" invert at Manhole WOF-1B
LF 276 $40.00 $11,040.00 10.00$             $2,760 35.00$             $9,660

40
Abandon Existing 15" VCP in place

 -Cap 15" invert at Manhole WOF-1
LF 66 $40.00 $2,640.00 10.00$             $660 35.00$             $2,310

41
Abandon Existing 12" VCP in place

 -Cap 15" invert at Manhole L3-84B
LF 39 $40.00 $1,560.00 10.00$             $390 35.00$             $1,365

42 Abandon 8" Laterals LF 67 $30.00 $2,010.00 10.00$             $670 35.00$             $2,345

43 Abandon Existing Manholes EA 5 $3,500.00 $17,500.00 3,000.00$        $15,000 5,000.00$        $25,000

44 Repair Traffic Loops LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 20,000.00$      $20,000 7,000.00$        $7,000

$6,926,261.85 $6,635,182.00 $6,749,987.00Total



Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 – Cratus Inc’s Bid Documents 



































































































































































































































































Cupertino Sanitary District 

Memo Item 10B 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Benjamin T. Porter, District Manager-Engineer 

Date: February 1, 2023 

Re: I-280/Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation  
Imperium First Consulting Agreement for Contractor Prevailing Wage 
Compliance Services  

The Cupertino Sanitary District has been asked by the Valley Transportation Agency (VTA) to relocate 
an existing 15-inch diameter sewer outside of the footprint of the new Interchange at Wolfe Road and 
Interstate 280 (I-280).  The project will involve using trenchless technologies such as micro-tunneling 
to install a 30 inch diameter carrier pipe under the freeway thus avoiding disruption to the traffic on I-
280 during construction.   The contract requires the Contractor and their subcontractors to pay their 
employees prevailing wages for the project.  

The District plans to engage a subconsultant who specializes in prevailing wage compliance for 
construction projects.  Imperium First Consulting, referred to as IFC, is a female owned, small business, 
DBE certified (45284), OSHA certified, and has earned a certification from the National Highway 
Institute (NHI) for DBE oversight.  Christine Willson is the primary contact for Imperium Consulting. 
Christine brings over twenty years of experience  in  the management, implementation, and leadership 
of small businesses. IFC’s primary focus will be to provide assurance to stakeholders by meeting all 
prevailing wage contract requirements. 

The attached agreement provides the scope of work and fee estimate by Imperium First Consulting to 
assist the Cupertino Sanitary District with Prevailing Wage compliance for the Wolfe Road Sewer 
Relocation project. This agreement has a fee of $90,000 and the scope of work includes the following 
tasks: 1) Attend pre-construction conference, 2) Prevailing wage monitoring for 38 weeks, 3) Employee 
prevailing wage interviews, 4) California Unified Certification Program (CUCP) reviews, 5) Contractor 
and subcontractor prevailing wage monitoring, and 6) Contingency.   

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Board authorize the District manager to execute an agreement with Imperium 
First Consulting with a fee not to exceed $90,000. 

Attachment: 

1. Imperium First Consulting Agreement



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, dated  , by and between CUPERTINO 
SANITARY DISTRICT ("District"), and IMPERIUM FIRST CONSULTING, a California 
corporation ("Consultant"), is made with reference to the following facts: 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 

1. Scope of Services. Subject to the approval of District, Consultant shall
oversee State and Federal Funding compliance, which includes DBE and Davis Bacon 
monitoring for the Cupertino Sanitary District Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation Project. All 
consulting services shall be performed to comply with the State and Federal requirements 
outlined in the Bid Documents for the Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation Project dated December 
19, 2022. 

2. Principal-In-Charge. Consultant shall designate a person in charge, who
shall act on behalf of Consultant and be primarily responsible for supervising performance of 
Consultant's services hereunder (the "Principal-In-Charge"). The person designated as 
Principal-In-Charge shall be subject to approval of the District. At any time, Consultant may 
change the person designated as Principal-In-Charge and the District may request 
Consultant to replace the person currently serving as the Principal-In-Charge. 

3. Compensation and Expenses. As compensation for all services to be
performed by Consultant under this Agreement, Consultant shall be paid the amounts set 
forth in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. In addition to such 
compensation, Consultant shall be entitled to charge District for expenses as described   in 
Exhibit "B", provided such expenses are included as part of the District's annual budget, or 
are otherwise approved by the District Board, and are billed to District at Consultant's cost. 

4. Method of Payment. Consultant shall submit billings to District describing
in detail the work performed for which payment is requested, the date the services were 
performed, the number of hours spent and by whom, and a description of any expenditures 
charged to District during the period covered by the statement. Billings shall be submitted 
monthly, or at such other time as agreed upon between District and Consultant. District shall 
pay Consultant no later than 30 days after approval of the invoice by the District Board. If 
the District Board objects to all or any portion of the billing, the District shall notify 
Consultant of the nature of such objection and the amount in dispute. District shall pay when 
due the portion of the billing, if any, that is not in dispute. The parties will make every effort 
to settle the disputed billing through good faith negotiations and mediation. 

5. Maintenance and Inspection of Records. Consultant shall maintain any
and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, time cards, purchase 
orders, and other records or documents relating to charges for services or expenditures 
charged to District, for a minimum of three (3) years from the date of final payment to 
Consultant under this Agreement and shall make the same available to District or its 
authorized representatives for inspection and audit, at any time during regular business 
hours, upon written request by District. The right of inspection shall include the right to 
make extracts and copies. 

Attachment 1.



6. Assignment and Subcontracts. Consultant acknowledges that Consultant's 
special skill and expertise is a material consideration for District entering into this 
Agreement. Consultant shall not assign, subcontract or delegate to any other party the 
performance of any services to be rendered by Consultant under this Agreement without prior 
approval of the District Board. If the District Board consents to any subcontracting of work, 
Consultant shall be responsible to District for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor. 

 
7. Correction of Work. Consultant shall promptly correct any defective, 

inaccurate or incomplete tasks, deliverables, goods, services, or other work, without 
additional cost to District. The performance or acceptance of services furnished by Consultant 
shall not relieve Consultant from the obligation to correct subsequently discovered defective, 
inaccurate, or incomplete performance of Consultant's services hereunder. 

 
8. Ownership of Documents. All plans, drawings, specifications, reports, 

documents and other writings prepared by and for Consultant in the course of performing its 
services under this Agreement, including all such materials delivered to Consultant by any 
other parties, except Consultant's working notes and internal documents, shall become the 
property of District upon payment to Consultant for such work, and District shall have the 
sole right to use such materials in its discretion without further compensation to Consultant 
or to any other party.   Consultant shall, at Consultant's cost, provide such plans, drawings, 
specifications, reports, documents and other writings to District upon written request. 

 
9. Independent Contractor. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, Consultant is, and at all times shall remain, an independent contractor, and 
not an agent, officer or employee of District. 

 
10. Licenses. Consultant represents and warrants to District that it has all 

licenses, permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature that are 
legally required of Consultant to practice its profession. Consultant shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, keep and maintain such licenses, permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals 
in full force and effect at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

 
11. Compliance with Standards of Care and Laws. Consultant shall adhere 

to the standard of care in its profession and shall exercise due professional care to comply 
with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and regulations in 
connection with the performance of its services under this Agreement. 

 
12. Mutual Indemnity. 

 
(a) Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its 

officers, directors, and officials, from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of 
action, losses, damages, injuries, expenses and liabilities, direct or indirect, including 
reasonable attorney's fees, to the extent arising out of the negligent performance by 
Consultant of its services under this Agreement or its failure to comply with any of its 
obligations contained in this Agreement, and District shall not be liable for any negligent acts 
or omissions or willful misconduct of Consultant. 



(b) To the extent permitted by law, District shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless Consultant and its officers, directors, shareholders, and employees, from and 
against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, losses, damages, injuries, expenses 
and liabilities, direct or indirect, including reasonable attorney's fees, arising from 
Consultant being designated and acting as District's manager, engineer, and District Clerk, 
and not resulting from any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct committed by 
Consultant, Consultant's Responsible Principal, or any of Consultant's other principals, 
officers, directors, employees or agents. 

 
13. Insurance. Consultant, at its own expense, shall procure and maintain, for 

the duration of this Agreement, insurance policies which satisfy the following requirements: 
 

(a) Type of policies and coverage: 
 

(1) General Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain commercial general 
liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage. If the form of insurance with a 
general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply 
separately to the work to be performed under this Agreement or the general 
aggregate limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit. 

 
(2) Automobile Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability 

insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for each 
occurrence, for bodily injury and property damage, providing coverage at least 
as broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 0001 (Ed. 12/90) Code 1 (any 
auto). 

 
(3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Coverage. Consultant shall 

maintain workers' compensation insurance as required by the State of 
California and employer's liability insurance in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, for any and all persons employed by Consultant in 
connection with the performance of services under this Agreement. In the 
alternative, Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to provide this 
coverage so long as the program of self-insurance complies fully with the 
provisions of the California Labor Code. The insurer, if insurance is provided, 
or Consultant, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall waive all rights 
of subrogation against District for loss arising from work performed by 
Consultant for District. 

 
(4) Professional Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain professional errors 

and omissions liability insurance in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per claim, covering negligent acts, errors or omissions which may 
be committed by Consultant in the performance of its services under this 
Agreement. 

 
(b) Endorsements: Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 

shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 

(1) The District, its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers 
in their official capacities as representatives of the District, are to be covered 
as insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on 



behalf of Consultant; products and completed operations of Consultant; 
premises owned, occupied or used by Consultant; or vehicles owned, leased, 
hired or borrowed by Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special 
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to District, its directors, officers, 
officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 
(2) For any claims related to the services performed by Consultant hereunder, 

Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the 
District, its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District, its directors, officers, 
officials, employees, agents or volunteers shall be excess of Consultant's 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
(3) Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies 

including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to District, 
its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 
(4) Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 

claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer's liability. 

 
(5) Consultant's insurance coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled or 

reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to District. 

 
(c) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured 

retentions must be declared to and approved by the District Board. 
 

(d) Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a 
current A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise approved by the District 
Board. 

 

(e) Verification and continuation of coverage. Consultant shall provide certificates 
of insurance with original endorsements to District as evidence of the insurance coverage 
required by this Agreement. At the request of District, Consultant shall provide complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the 
coverage required by this Agreement. In the event of any reduction, suspension or 
cancellation of any insurance coverage required to be provided by Consultant hereunder, 
Consultant shall furnish replacement insurance in accordance with the requirements of this 
Section prior to the effective date of such reduction, suspension or cancellation so as to avoid 
any lapse in coverage. 

 
14. Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 

shall be in writing and shall be either personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, addressed to the other party as follows: 



To District: Cupertino Sanitary District 
20863 Stevens Creek Blvd. 
Suite 100 

 Cupertino, CA 95014  
 Attn: Benjamin Porter 
 District Manager-Engineer 

 
To Consultant: Imperium First Consulting 
 P.O Box 1710 
 Carlsbad, CA 92018 
 Attn: Christine Willson  
 CEO/ President Principal-In Charge 

 

15. Litigation Expenses and Attorneys' Fees. To the extent permitted by law, 
if either party to this Agreement commences any legal action against the other party to 
enforce or interpret this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs 
and expenses that may be incurred in connection therewith, including court costs, expert 
witness fees, discovery expenses, and attorneys' fees. Prior to the commencement of any 
litigation, the parties shall make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute through mediation. 

 
16. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by either 

party, effective upon written notice, should the other party commit any material default in 
the performance of its obligations hereunder. This Agreement may also be terminated by 
either party, for any reason, upon ninety (90) day's prior written notice to the other party. 
In the event this Agreement is terminated by District through no fault of Consultant, 
Consultant shall be compensated for all services performed to the effective date of 
termination. 

 
17. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 
(a) Severability. Should any portion of this Agreement be declared void or 

unenforceable in a final decision by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and 
effect, provided that the remainder of this Agreement can be reasonably interpreted to 
implement the intention of the parties. 

 
(b) Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 

the parties and supersedes and cancels all prior agreements or understandings, whether 
written or verbal. 

 
(c) Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written 

document duly executed by both District and Consultant. 



(d) Waiver. The waiver of any breach or default under this Agreement shall not 
constitute a continuing waiver of a subsequent breach of the same provision or any other 
provision of this Agreement. 

 
(e) Execution. Each party warrants that the individuals signing this Agreement 

on its behalf have the legal power and authority to do so and to bind the party to this 
Agreement. 

 
(f) Successors and Assigns. Subject to the restriction against assignment and 

subcontracting, this Agreement shall be inured to the benefit of and shall be binding upon 
the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and 

year first above written. 
 

CUPERTINO SANITARY 
DISTRICT OF SANTA CLARA 
COUNTY 

 

By:   
Patrick Kwok, President 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Attest:   
Angela Chen, Secretary 

 
 
 

 

Marc Hynes, District Counsel  
PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE: 
Imperium First Consulting 

 

By:   
Christine Willson, CEO 



EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Work 

 
 

1. Imperium First Consulting will attend pre-construction conference or kick off meeting 
in person and provide contractors with a check list of all prevailing wage requirements. 
The check list will be reviewed and signed by authorized personnel for each 
contracting company. IFC will be available after the pre-construction conference/kick 
off meeting for all questions contractors may have regarding their obligation to fulfil 
prevailing wage requirements in accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771. 
IFC will ensure contractor compliance with the provisions of Article 2, Chapter 1, Part 
7, Division 2 (commencing with section 1770) of said Labor Code and particularly 
section 1775 thereof is required. 

2. Prevailing Wage Monitoring will include the following tasks: 

a. IFC and its staff will review weekly certified payrolls submitted via a secure 
email, or FedEx/UPS. Certified payrolls and supporting documentation are 
reviewed and logged after all compliances are met. All labor hours are tracked 
and apprentice ratios are also tracked to comply with labor code 1777.5 where 
the ratio is five hours of journeyman work to one hour of apprenticeship. 
Apprentice certifications will be verified through Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR) and Department of Labor (DOL).   

b. Contractors’ payments will be tracked using LCP Tracker Software or similar 
is utilized to capture weekly and monthly reports. 

c. Monthly status reports will be sent to Mark Thomas. This reporting will state 
whether progress payments or contractor retention must be withheld due to 
non-compliance. 

d. During certified payroll reviews, all journeyman and apprentice hours are 
logged on an excel report to track apprentice requirements. Supporting 
documentation such as fringe benefit payments to third parties are requested 
periodically to cross check for compliance. Contractor will be notified of all 
delinquencies. In the event where delinquencies are not rectified after notifying 
contractors, or/and apprentice ratios continue to fall below the minimum 
ratio, Mark Thomas will be notified. 

3. Employee interviews will be performed periodically according to 29 CFR 5.6, to 
cross check employee prevailing wage rates with certified payrolls received.  
Depending on project site location, IFC will rely on Inspectors on site to fill out 
interview questionnaires and email copies to IFC. IFC will rely on Mark Thomas’ 
inspectors or project managers to inform us of the weekly work schedule of contractors 
particularly DBE Contractors work schedule, so that we can schedule our CUCP 
interview/interviews accordingly. 

4. California Unified Certification Program (CUCP) reviews will be done on site when 
applicable to ensure contractors are performing the scope of work per agreement 
with Mark Thomas and Cupertino Sanitary District.  All contractors DBE 



Certification will be verified through the CUCP website. The objectives of this 
compliance review are to: 

 
a. Determine whether the contractor is honoring the Unified Certification Program 

agreement submitted to Mark Thomas for Cupertino Sanitary District 

b. Examine the required tools utilized on site, and scope of work performed to 
ensure they meet procedures and standards of the CUCP against the 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise program compliance standards set forth in 
the regulations and to document the compliance status of each component. 

c. Gather information and data regarding the operation of the Contractors 
employees through interviews and certification file reviews. 

5. Contractor and subcontractor will be monitored for the payment of applicable 
prevailing rates and work classification by completing the following tasks: 

 
a. Compare inspector’s daily work diaries/reports with certified payroll 

records for employee(s) labor classification, hours worked, exact work 
performed and equipment on site. 

b. Delinquency notices will be provided to Mark Thomas when discrepancies are 
not cleared up within 30 calendar days.  All violations and complaints of 
underpayments must be cleared up in seven business days or prompt report 
findings of noncompliance will be submitted to Mark Thomas. IFC will 
recommend withholding of contract payments and/or impose penalties for 
noncompliance of any/all prevailing wage requirements. 

c. Assist the contractor and subcontractor(s) with questions regarding 
completion of required labor compliance documentation and wage 
determination as necessary or required. 

6. A contingency task will be provided for extension of the contractors work period, 
additional compliance interviews, and additional effort to resolve compliance issues. 



EXHIBIT B 

Compensation 
 
1. Imperium First Consulting will complete this work on an hourly basis, using the hourly 

rate schedule table shown below.  
 
2. IFC will charge for 3 round trip flights from Ontario, CA to San Jose, CA to conduct CUCP 

Reviews. Dates to be determined according to contractor schedule. 
 
3. Imperium First Consulting will complete the scope of work and travel for a not to 

exceed     amount of $ 90,000.  
 

4. If the scope of work for the project increases as a result of project delays, additional 
travel, or other scope changes then the not to exceed fee limit will be increased. 

 
The table below outlines Imperium First Consulting’s estimated cost by task. 
 
 

Labor Expenses Total Cost 

Task Hours Cost** Travel   
     

1. Pre-Construction 
Conference -1 Trip 

8 $831.20 $1,000.00 $1,831.20 

     

2&4. Prevailing wage 
monitoring for 38 weeks 

720 $74,844.00 
 

$74,844.00 

     

3. Employee Interviews - 2 
Trips 

16 $1,663.20 $2,000.00 $3,663.20 

     

5. Project Close Out 40 $4,158.00 
 

$4158.00 
     

6. Contingency 
  

  $5,500.00 
     
    

$89,996.40 

** 2023 Hourly Rate is $ 
103.95 

    

 

 

 



 

Compensation Assumptions: 

1.  Imperium First consulting rates are hourly, however, to determine an estimated 
hours per week, we have based the level of effort assuming there will be five 
contractors. 

2. Each contractor having a total of up to seven employees on their certified payroll 
each week requiring 10 hours of review weekly, to include supporting 
documentation review, and calculation of apprentice hours. 

3. Ten hours is minimum review total for this project.  

4. IFC will conduct two CUCP reviews to capture all contractors on site. 

5. During the week of CUCP reviews, IFC will add 5 hours of work time to commute to 
the job site and interview DBE Contractors.  

6. It is assumed that the project duration will be 187 working days. 



 
 
  

Cupertino Sanitary District 

 

Memo Item 10C 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Benjamin T. Porter, District Manager-Engineer 

Date: February 1, 2023 

Re: I-280/Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation  
Sequoia Ecological Consulting Agreement for Biological Services  

The Cupertino Sanitary District has been asked by the Valley Transportation Agency (VTA) to relocate 
an existing 15-inch diameter sewer outside of the footprint of the new Interchange at Wolfe Road and 
Interstate 280 (I-280).  The project will involve using trenchless technologies such as micro-tunneling to 
install a 30inch diameter carrier pipe under the freeway thus avoiding disruption to the traffic on I-280 
during construction.  The District proposes to engage a subconsultant who specializes in biological 
services to meet the environmental requirements of the environmental documents for the new Wolfe 
Road Interchange. 

Sequoia Ecological Consulting, Inc. (Sequoia) is pleased to provide the following scope of work and cost 
estimate for nesting bird surveys in support of the Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation Project.  As a locally 
based biological specialty firm, Sequoia has considerable experience supporting construction and trail 
building projects with biological services, including conducting nesting bird surveys.  Sequoia is a 
certified DBE (CUCP/DOT DBE Cert# 40492) and small business (CA DGS #1790596). Sequoia is 
registered with the DIR (#1000022497), and its business license number with the City of Walnut Creek, 
California is 063028.  

The biological measures of the of the Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program (MMRP) requires 
the District to provide a qualified biologist to conduct preconstruction surveys for San Francisco 
dusky-footed woodrat (MMRP-BIO-6). If active woodrat nests are detected, additional measures 
(MMRP-BIO-7 through MMRP-BIO-9) will be implemented as appropriate. In addition, if work 
occurs during the nesting season between February 1 - August 31, the District must provide a 
qualified biologist to conduct preconstruction nesting bird surveys (MMRP-BIO-11).  

If an active nest (i.e., a nest with eggs or young, or any completed raptor nest attended by adults) is 
found sufficiently close to work areas to be disturbed by these activities, the biologist, in 
consultation with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, will determine the extent of a 
disturbance-free buffer zone to be established around the nest (typically 300 feet for raptors and 50-
100 feet for other species), to ensure that no nests of species protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty 
Act and California Fish and Game Code will be disturbed during 



Page 2 

The attached agreement provides the scope of work and fee estimate for the Cupertino Sanitary District 
by Sequoia Ecological Consulting. This agreement has a fee of $13,279 and the scope of work includes 
the following tasks: 1) Pre-construction survey for nesting birds, 2) Survey for San Francisco dusky-
footed woodrat, 3) Additional Environmental Support (Optional) that may include 3.1) Biological 
support, 3.2) Agency coordination and meetings, or 3.3) Woodrat nest relocation. 

Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the Board authorize the District Manager to execute the agreement with Sequoia 
Ecological Consulting with a fee not to exceed $13,279. 

Attachment: 

1. Sequoia Ecological Consulting, Inc. Consulting Agreement 

   

 



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, dated  , by and between CUPERTINO 
SANITARY DISTRICT ("District"), and SEQUOIA ECOLOGICAL CONSULTING, INC. a 
California corporation ("Consultant"), is made with reference to the following facts: 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 

1. Scope of Services. Subject to the approval of District, Consultant shall
complete the pre-construction nesting bird surveys if the work is to be completed between 
February 1 and August 31, and for pre-construction surveys for the San Francisco dusky-
footed woodrat for the Cupertino Sanitary District Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation Project. All 
consulting services shall be performed to comply with the Bid Documents for Cupertino 
Sanitary District Wolfe Road Sewer Relocation Project specifications dated December 19, 
2022.   

2. Principal-In-Charge. Consultant shall designate a person in charge, who
shall act on behalf of Consultant and be primarily responsible for supervising performance of 
Consultant's services hereunder (the "Principal-In-Charge"). The person designated as 
Principal-In-Charge shall be subject to approval of the District. At any time, Consultant may 
change the person designated as Principal-In-Charge and the District may request 
Consultant to replace the person currently serving as the Principal-In-Charge. 

3. Compensation and Expenses. As compensation for all services to be
performed by Consultant under this Agreement, Consultant shall be paid the amounts set 
forth in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. In addition to such 
compensation, Consultant shall be entitled to charge District for expenses as described   in 
Exhibit "B", provided such expenses are included as part of the District's annual budget, or 
are otherwise approved by the District Board, and are billed to District at Consultant's cost. 

4. Method of Payment. Consultant shall submit billings to District describing
in detail the work performed for which payment is requested, the date the services were 
performed, the number of hours spent and by whom, and a description of any expenditures 
charged to District during the period covered by the statement. Billings shall be submitted 
monthly, or at such other time as agreed upon between District and Consultant. District shall 
pay Consultant no later than 30 days after approval of the invoice by the District Board. If 
the District Board objects to all or any portion of the billing, the District shall notify 
Consultant of the nature of such objection and the amount in dispute. District shall pay when 
due the portion of the billing, if any, that is not in dispute. The parties will make every effort 
to settle the disputed billing through good faith negotiations and mediation. 

5. Maintenance and Inspection of Records. Consultant shall maintain any
and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, time cards, purchase 
orders, and other records or documents relating to charges for services or expenditures 
charged to District, for a minimum of three (3) years from the date of final payment to 
Consultant under this Agreement and shall make the same available to District or its 
authorized representatives for inspection and audit, at any time during regular business 
hours, upon written request by District. The right of inspection shall include the right to 
make extracts and copies. 

Attachment 1.



6. Assignment and Subcontracts. Consultant acknowledges that Consultant's 
special skill and expertise is a material consideration for District entering into this 
Agreement. Consultant shall not assign, subcontract or delegate to any other party the 
performance of any services to be rendered by Consultant under this Agreement without prior 
approval of the District Board. If the District Board consents to any subcontracting of work, 
Consultant shall be responsible to District for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor. 

 
7. Correction of Work. Consultant shall promptly correct any defective, 

inaccurate or incomplete tasks, deliverables, goods, services, or other work, without 
additional cost to District. The performance or acceptance of services furnished by Consultant 
shall not relieve Consultant from the obligation to correct subsequently discovered defective, 
inaccurate, or incomplete performance of Consultant's services hereunder. 

 
8. Ownership of Documents. All plans, drawings, specifications, reports, 

documents and other writings prepared by and for Consultant in the course of performing its 
services under this Agreement, including all such materials delivered to Consultant by any 
other parties, except Consultant's working notes and internal documents, shall become the 
property of District upon payment to Consultant for such work, and District shall have the 
sole right to use such materials in its discretion without further compensation to Consultant 
or to any other party.   Consultant shall, at Consultant's cost, provide such plans, drawings, 
specifications, reports, documents and other writings to District upon written request. 

 
9. Independent Contractor. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, Consultant is, and at all times shall remain, an independent contractor, and 
not an agent, officer or employee of District. 

 
10. Licenses. Consultant represents and warrants to District that it has all 

licenses, permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature that are 
legally required of Consultant to practice its profession. Consultant shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, keep and maintain such licenses, permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals 
in full force and effect at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

 
11. Compliance with Standards of Care and Laws. Consultant shall adhere 

to the standard of care in its profession and shall exercise due professional care to comply 
with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and regulations in 
connection with the performance of its services under this Agreement. 

 
12. Mutual Indemnity. 

 
(a) Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its 

officers, directors, and officials, from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of 
action, losses, damages, injuries, expenses and liabilities, direct or indirect, including 
reasonable attorney's fees, to the extent arising out of the negligent performance by 
Consultant of its services under this Agreement or its failure to comply with any of its 
obligations contained in this Agreement, and District shall not be liable for any negligent acts 
or omissions or willful misconduct of Consultant. 



(b) To the extent permitted by law, District shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless Consultant and its officers, directors, shareholders, and employees, from and 
against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, losses, damages, injuries, expenses 
and liabilities, direct or indirect, including reasonable attorney's fees, arising from 
Consultant being designated and acting as District's manager, engineer, and District Clerk, 
and not resulting from any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct committed by 
Consultant, Consultant's Responsible Principal, or any of Consultant's other principals, 
officers, directors, employees or agents. 

 
13. Insurance. Consultant, at its own expense, shall procure and maintain, for 

the duration of this Agreement, insurance policies which satisfy the following requirements: 
 

(a) Type of policies and coverage: 
 

(1) General Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain commercial general 
liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage. If the form of insurance with a 
general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply 
separately to the work to be performed under this Agreement or the general 
aggregate limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit. 

 
(2) Automobile Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability 

insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for each 
occurrence, for bodily injury and property damage, providing coverage at least 
as broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 0001 (Ed. 12/90) Code 1 (any 
auto). 

 
(3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Coverage. Consultant shall 

maintain workers' compensation insurance as required by the State of 
California and employer's liability insurance in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, for any and all persons employed by Consultant in 
connection with the performance of services under this Agreement. In the 
alternative, Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to provide this 
coverage so long as the program of self-insurance complies fully with the 
provisions of the California Labor Code. The insurer, if insurance is provided, 
or Consultant, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall waive all rights 
of subrogation against District for loss arising from work performed by 
Consultant for District. 

 
(4) Professional Liability Coverage. Consultant shall maintain professional errors 

and omissions liability insurance in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per claim, covering negligent acts, errors or omissions which may 
be committed by Consultant in the performance of its services under this 
Agreement. 

 
(b) Endorsements: Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 

shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 

(1) The District, its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers 
in their official capacities as representatives of the District, are to be covered 
as insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on 



behalf of Consultant; products and completed operations of Consultant; 
premises owned, occupied or used by Consultant; or vehicles owned, leased, 
hired or borrowed by Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special 
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to District, its directors, officers, 
officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 
(2) For any claims related to the services performed by Consultant hereunder, 

Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the 
District, its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District, its directors, officers, 
officials, employees, agents or volunteers shall be excess of Consultant's 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
(3) Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies 

including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to District, 
its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 
(4) Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 

claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer's liability. 

 
(5) Consultant's insurance coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled or 

reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to District. 

 
(c) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured 

retentions must be declared to and approved by the District Board. 
 

(d) Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a 
current A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise approved by the District 
Board. 

 

(e) Verification and continuation of coverage. Consultant shall provide certificates 
of insurance with original endorsements to District as evidence of the insurance coverage 
required by this Agreement. At the request of District, Consultant shall provide complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the 
coverage required by this Agreement. In the event of any reduction, suspension or 
cancellation of any insurance coverage required to be provided by Consultant hereunder, 
Consultant shall furnish replacement insurance in accordance with the requirements of this 
Section prior to the effective date of such reduction, suspension or cancellation so as to avoid 
any lapse in coverage. 

 
14. Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 

shall be in writing and shall be either personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, addressed to the other party as follows: 



To District: Cupertino Sanitary District 
20863 Stevens Creek Blvd. 
Suite 100 
Cupertino, CA 95014 
Attn: Benjamin Porter 
District Manager-Engineer 

 

To Consultant: Sequoia Ecological Consulting, Inc. 
1342 Creekside Drive 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 
Attn: Sarah Blanchfield 
Principal-In Charge 

 

15. Litigation Expenses and Attorneys' Fees. To the extent permitted by law, 
if either party to this Agreement commences any legal action against the other party to 
enforce or interpret this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs 
and expenses that may be incurred in connection therewith, including court costs, expert 
witness fees, discovery expenses, and attorneys' fees. Prior to the commencement of any 
litigation, the parties shall make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute through mediation. 

 
16. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by either 

party, effective upon written notice, should the other party commit any material default in 
the performance of its obligations hereunder. This Agreement may also be terminated by 
either party, for any reason, upon ninety (90) day's prior written notice to the other party. 
In the event this Agreement is terminated by District through no fault of Consultant, 
Consultant shall be compensated for all services performed to the effective date of 
termination. 

 
17. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 
(a) Severability. Should any portion of this Agreement be declared void or 

unenforceable in a final decision by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and 
effect, provided that the remainder of this Agreement can be reasonably interpreted to 
implement the intention of the parties. 

 
(b) Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 

the parties and supersedes and cancels all prior agreements or understandings, whether 
written or verbal. 

 
(c) Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written 

document duly executed by both District and Consultant. 



(d) Waiver. The waiver of any breach or default under this Agreement shall not 
constitute a continuing waiver of a subsequent breach of the same provision or any other 
provision of this Agreement. 

 
(e) Execution. Each party warrants that the individuals signing this Agreement 

on its behalf have the legal power and authority to do so and to bind the party to this 
Agreement. 

 
(f) Successors and Assigns. Subject to the restriction against assignment and 

subcontracting, this Agreement shall be inured to the benefit of and shall be binding upon 
the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and 

year first above written. 
 

CUPERTINO SANITARY 
DISTRICT OF SANTA CLARA 
COUNTY 

 

By:   
Patrick Kwok, President 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Attest:   
Angela Chen, Secretary 

 
 
 

 

Marc Hynes, District Counsel PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE: 
Sequoia Ecological Consulting, Inc. 

By:  

  



 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Work 

 

Sequoia Ecological Consulting, Inc. (Sequoia) understands that per the biological measures of 
the Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program (MMRP), CSD must provide a qualified 
biologist to conduct preconstruction surveys for San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat (MMRP-
BIO-6). If active woodrat nests are detected, additional measures (MMRP-BIO-7 through 
MMRP-BIO-9) will be implemented as appropriate. In addition, if work occurs during the 
nesting season between February 1 - August 31, CSD must provide a qualified biologist to 
conduct preconstruction nesting bird surveys (MMRP-BIO-11). If an active nest (i.e., a nest 
with eggs or young, or any completed raptor nest attended by adults) is found sufficiently 
close to work areas to be disturbed by these activities, the biologist, in consultation with the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, will determine the extent of a disturbance-free 
buffer zone to be established around the nest (typically 300 feet for raptors and 50-100 feet for 
other species), to ensure that no nests of species protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act 
and California Fish and Game Code will be disturbed during project implementation. 

Task 1: Preconstruction Surveys for Nesting Birds 

As required by MMRP-BIO-11, Sequoia’s biologist will conduct a preconstruction clearance 
survey for nesting birds prior to project commencement. The nesting bird survey area will 
consist of the project site and 300 feet surrounding the project boundaries, and will include a 
survey for all raptors and other avian species, as access allows. The biologist conducting the 
survey will search all potential nesting substrates for all potential nest types (e.g., ground, 
cavity, shrub/tree, and building/structural). The biologist will conduct a meandering transect 
survey, stopping every 50 feet to scan for nesting activity. Sequoia will also note and 
summarize sensitive biological resources and other habitat that may provide refugia for 
special‐status species. Following the survey(s), Sequoia will produce a brief e-mail summary 
describing the survey results. 
 
Sequoia will then prepare a Preconstruction Survey Report, which will include the surveyor(s) 
name, date, and time of the survey, weather conditions (temperature, wind speed, cloud 
cover), and observations of avian species, active nests, or the absence of observed nesting 
activity during the survey. The report will also include labeled photographs and GPS locations 
of any active nests observed during the survey. The GPS locations will be provided in a map of 
the survey area and results and as a KML/KMZ file if requested.  

Deliverables:  

 Preconstruction Survey Report detailing the results of the survey  

- Report will be submitted to the Client within two (2) business days following 
the survey. 

- GIS files and/or .kmz maps of species locations will be provided to the Client if 
regulated species are detected. 

  



 

Assumptions: 

 Each unit rate is for one (1) biologist to conduct a single, one-day survey within the 
designated survey area.  

- Three (3) separate surveys will be required to perform initial surveys, conduct 
follow-up surveys, and/or perform nest monitoring status checks or verify 
continued establishment of non-disturbance buffers around active nests, as 
applicable. 

 If active nests are detected and it is determined that construction activities are likely 
to impair successful rearing of young, the biologist will mark a preliminary “no-
disturbance buffer.”  

- The biologist will mark preliminary nest buffers with pin flags or flagging tape. 
Scope does not include installation of construction fencing. 

- As required by MMRP-BIO-11, Sequoia, on behalf of the CSD, will consult with 
CDFW to determine the extent of a disturbance-free buffer zone to be 
established around each active nest, as applicable. Agency coordination will be 
billed as time and materials (T&M) per 2023 rates as part of Task 3. 

- If, in rare situations, adjustments to the preliminary nest buffers are required 
after consultation with CDFW, the costs of mobilization and field time will be 
billed as T&M per 2023 rates as part of Task 3. 

Task 2: Surveys for San Francisco Dusky-Footed Woodrat 

As required by MMRP-BIO-6, Sequoia’s biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey for 
San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat nests within 30 days of the start of work activities within 
non-developed habitats in the construction work area (i.e., grasslands and woodlands). The 
biologist will conduct a meandering transect survey, stopping every 20 feet to scan for 
woodrats and nests. Following the survey(s), Sequoia will produce and submit to the Client a 
brief e-mail summary describing the survey methods and results. 

Deliverables:  

 Email summary of methods and results of survey 

- GIS files and/or .kmz maps of nests locations will be provided to the Client if 
active woodrat nests are detected. 

Assumptions: 

 One (1) qualified biologist to conduct a single, one-day survey within designated survey 
area (survey area = project site and within 30 feet of impact areas). 



 

- Two (2) separate surveys will be required to perform initial surveys, conduct 
follow-up surveys, and/or perform monitoring status checks, as applicable. 

 If active woodrat nests are observed, the biologist will mark nests and buffers with pin 
flags or flagging tape. Scope does not include installation of construction fencing. 

- It is recommended that the Client consults with CSD and all relative parties to 
determine the final buffer size. MMRP-BIO-7 states that ideally a 30-foot buffer 
will be maintained to avoid disturbance to woodrat nests. 

Task 3: Additional Environmental Support (Optional) 

3.1 Biological Support 

Additional biological support for on-site biological inspections and monitoring will be billed as 
T&M per 2023 rates, as necessary. 

3.2 Agency Coordination and Meetings 

Agency coordination and/or project personnel correspondence/meetings will be billed as T&M 
per 2023 rates, as necessary.  

3.3 Woodrat Nest Relocation 

If active woodrat nests are determined to be present in, or within 30 feet of, the impact areas, 
they will be avoided to the extent feasible. Ideally, a 30-foot buffer will be maintained between 
project activities and woodrat nests to avoid disturbance. In some situations, a smaller buffer 
may be allowed if, in the opinion of a qualified biologist, nest relocation would represent a 
greater disturbance to the woodrats than the adjacent work activities. 
 
If avoidance of active woodrat nests within 30 feet of the work areas is not feasible without 
disrupting woodrat nests, then nest materials will be relocated to suitable habitat as close to 
the project area as possible (ideally, within or immediately adjacent to the construction work 
area). The following relocation methodology will be used:  
 
Prior to the beginning of construction activities, a qualified biologist will provide an 
environmental awareness training to project personnel and then provide guidance/oversight 
to the construction crew (Contractor) who will disturb the woodrat nest(s) to the degree that 
all woodrats leave the nest(s) and seek refuge outside of the construction area. Relocation 
efforts will avoid the peak nesting season (February - July) to the maximum extent feasible. 
Disturbance of the woodrat nest(s) will be initiated no earlier than one hour before dusk to 
prevent the exposure of woodrats to diurnal predators. Subsequently, the biologist will 
oversee the Contractor while they dismantle and relocate the nest material by hand. During 
the deconstruction process, the biologist will attempt to assess if there are juveniles in the 
nest(s). If immobile juveniles are observed, the deconstruction process will be discontinued 
until a time when the biologist believes the juveniles will be capable of independent survival 
(typically after 2 - 3 weeks). A no disturbance buffer will be established around the nest(s) 
until the juveniles are mobile. The nest(s) may be dismantled once the biologist has 



 

determined that adverse impacts on the juveniles would not occur. 

Deliverables:  

 Woodrat Relocation Plan 

- If needed, Sequoia will prepare a Woodrat Relocation Plan for submittal to 
CDFW for review/approval. The Plan will include a description of the project 
site and surrounding habitats, provide locations of the known woodrat nests, 
include a relocation plan for nests, provide details on safety procedures to 
follow, and include reporting information required to be completed during/after 
these work activities. 

- No rounds of Client edits to report are included. 

Assumptions: 

 One (1) qualified biologist will provide on-site guidance/oversight to construction crew 
(Contractor) who will perform relocation activities over two (2) eight- (8) hour days on 
the project site. 

 Task does not include any active woodrat trapping (MMRP-BIO-8B and -9) and 
assumes if active woodrat nests are detected on the project site, the woodrat nest site 
and proposed relocation area will be connected by suitable dispersal habitat and 
therefore trapping will not be required.  

 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Compensation 

 
Sequoia anticipates providing services on a unit cost and T&M basis. This costing approach 
may be modified upon direction by the Client. The estimated costs cover the scope of work 
and assumptions provided above.  
 

Task 
2023 
Unit 
Cost 

Quantity 
Total 
Cost 

Task 1. Preconstruction Surveys for Nesting Birds $1,253 3 $3,759 
Task 2. Surveys for San Francisco Dusky-Footed 
Woodrat $1,356 2 $2,712 

Total Tasks 1 and 2 $6,471 
Task 3. Additional Environmental Support (Optional) 

3.1 Biological Support  T&M - $1,000 
3.2 Agency Coordination and Meetings  T&M - $1,000 
3.3 Woodrat Nest Relocation T&M - $4,808 

Total Optional Task 3 $6,808 
Total including Optional Task 3 $13,279 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS 
 The Client will provide Sequoia with safe access to the site, access routes, and all 

applicable survey areas at an agreed upon time between the Client and Sequoia. 

 Mileage will be charged at standard GSA rate. 

CLOSING 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at the email or 
phone number listed below. Thank you for the opportunity to support you on this project. 

Sincerely, 
Jesse Reebs | Senior Biologist and Senior Project Manager 
Sequoia Ecological Consulting, Inc. 
Mobile: 510.908.0757 | Main: 925.855.5500 ǀ  Fax: 510.439.1104 | jreebs@sequoiaeco.com



 

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE (2023-2024) 

LABOR CATEGORY 2023 2024   OTHER DIRECT COSTS RATE 
Sr. Principal $273 $287   Regular vehicle (GSA Rate) $0.655/mile 

Principal $247 $259   Submeter GPS $100/day 

Regulatory Compliance 
Manager 

$242 $254   UTV and Trailer $95/day 

     Fleet Vehicle $85/day 

Senior Program 
Manager 

$236 $248   Infra-red Wildlife Monitor $50/day 

Program Manager $231 $243   Spotting Scope $30/day 

Senior Technical 
Specialist 

$226 $237   Acoustic Bat Monitor  $35/unit/day 

Senior Regulatory 
Specialist 

$210 $221   Night Vision Goggles $30/day 

Senior Project Manager $205 $215   Kayak Kit (Kayak, PFDs, 
Paddles) 

$75/day 

Project Manager $173 $182   Streamlight Strion HPL 
Flashlight 

$12.50/day 

Associate Project 
Manager 

$158 $166   Aquatic Pond Sampling Kit $25/day 

Assistant Project 
Manager 

$147 $154   Color Graphics At cost 

     Field Supplies At cost 

Senior Planner $189 $198   Equipment Rental At cost 

Planner $163 $171   Media Reproduction At cost 

 
    Airfare/Transportation/Rental 

Vehicles 
At cost 

Senior Scientist $189 $198   Lodging/Meals At cost 

Senior Biologist $168 $176   
Notes: 
Hours beyond 8 hours per day are charged at an 
overtime rate of 1.5 times our standard hourly rates 
for qualifying personnel. 
To comply with California Labor Code 512 and 
California Code of Regulations 11040, if onsite 
conditions prohibit personnel from taking required 
breaks, one additional hour of time will be billed per 
day for qualifying staff covered under the regulations. 

 

Resource Specialist $147 $154   
Project 
Biologist/Botanist 

$137 $144   

Associate 
Biologist/Botanist 

$126 $132   

Staff Biologist/Botanist $121 $127   
Field Biologist/Botanist $110 $116   
     
Senior Botanist  $184 $193   
Senior Arborist $163 $171   
Arborist $152 $160   
Botanist $152 $160   
     
Senior GIS Specialist $179 $188   
GIS Analyst $154 $162   
GIS Technician $137 $144   
     
Senior Technical Editor $194 $204   
Technical Editor $111 $117   
Project Administrator $121 $127   

 



 

 
 
  

Cupertino Sanitary District 

Memo        Item 10D 
 To: Board of Directors  

From: Benjamin Porter, District Manager-Engineer 

Date: February 1, 2023 

Re: Board Member Compensation Survey 

Background: 

For the Board’s information, staff have researched the compensation for Board Members of various 
surrounding agencies. 

Findings: 

Staff found the following Board Compensation information. 

1. Cupertino Sanitary District - $231.00 per Board Meeting or per day (Ordinance No. 90 adopted 

10/1/2003) 

2. Burbank Sanitary District - $240.00/per meeting 

3. West Valley Sanitation District - $210.00/per meeting 

4. Santa Clara Water District - $331.86/per meeting 

5. East Bay Municipal Utility District - $100.00/per meeting 

6. East Bay Dischargers Authority - $240.00/per meeting 

7. Alameda County Water District -$290.00/per meeting 

8. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) - $190.00/per meeting 

9. Central Contra Costa Sanitary District - $200.00/per meeting 

10. Bay Shore Sanitary District - $190.00/per meeting 

 



CUPERTINO SANITARY DISTRICT 
MEETING/EVENT SCHEDULE 

FEBRUARY 2023 

02/01: 1st Regular Meeting 

02/06: TAC 

02/08: CASSE 

02/09: TPAC 

02/15: 2nd Regular Meeting 

MARCH 2023 

03/01: 1st Regular Meeting 

03/06: TAC & SCCSDA 

03/08: CASSE 

03/09: TPAC 

03/15: 2nd Regular Meeting 

APRIL 2023 

04/05: 1st Regular Meeting 

04/10: TAC 

04/12: CASSE 

04/13: TPAC 

04/19: 2nd Regular Meeting 

1st Regular 
Meeting  

2nd 
Regular 
Meeting  

1st Regular 
Meeting  

1st Regular 
Meeting  

2nd 
Regular 
Meeting  

2nd 
Regular 
Meeting 

SCCSDA 

CASSE 

CASA-CSW 

CASSE 

CASSE 

Item 12.A.




